

addition to any other remedy, may remove the facility at the expense of the owner.

Sec. 2. Section 47.04.090, chapter 13, Laws of 1961 and RCW 47.04-.090 are each amended to read as follows:

It (~~shall be~~) is a misdemeanor for any person to violate any of the provisions of this title unless (~~such violation is~~) specifically provided otherwise by this title or other law of this state (~~declared to be a felony or a gross misdemeanor~~).

Unless another penalty is provided in this title (~~provided~~), every person convicted of a misdemeanor for violation of any provisions of this title shall be punished (~~accordingly~~) in accordance with chapter 9A.20 RCW.

Passed the Senate April 17, 1989.

Passed the House April 12, 1989.

Approved by the Governor May 3, 1989.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 3, 1989.

CHAPTER 225

[House Bill No. 1060]

STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BONDS—INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

AN ACT Relating to bond information; amending RCW 39.44.200, 39.44.210, 39.44.230, 39.44.240, and 43.63A.155; and repealing RCW 39.44.220.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Sec. 1. Section 5, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 as amended by section 12, chapter 297, Laws of 1987 and RCW 39.44.200 are each amended to read as follows:

Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in this section apply throughout RCW 39.44.200 through 39.44.240.

(1) "Bond" means "bond" as defined in RCW 39.46.020, but also includes any other indebtedness that may be issued by any local government to fund private activities or purposes where the indebtedness is of a nonrecourse nature payable from private sources.

(2) "Local government" means "local government" as defined in RCW 39.46.020.

(3) "Type of bond" includes: (a) General obligation bonds; (b) revenue bonds; (c) local improvement district bonds; (d) special assessment bonds such as those issued by irrigation districts and diking districts; and (e) other classes of bonds.

(4) "State" means "state" as defined in RCW 39.46.020 but also includes any commissions or other entities of the state.

Sec. 2. Section 1, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 and RCW 39.44.210 are each amended to read as follows:

~~((Each local government that issues any type of bond, where the state fiscal agency does not act as the bond registrar for the bond issue;))~~ For each state or local government bond issued, the underwriter of the issue shall supply the department of community development with information on the bond issue within ~~((thirty))~~ twenty days of its issuance. In cases where the issuer of the bond makes a direct or private sale to a purchaser without benefit of an underwriter, the issuer shall supply the required information. The bond issue information shall be provided on a form prescribed by the department of community development and shall include but is not limited to: (1) The par value of the bond issue; (2) the effective interest rates; (3) a schedule of maturities; (4) the purposes of the bond issue; ~~((and))~~ (5) cost of issuance information; and (6) the type of bonds that are issued. A copy of the bond covenants shall be supplied with this information.

For each state or local government bond issued, the issuer's bond counsel promptly shall provide to the underwriter or to the department of community development information on the amount of any fees charged for services rendered with regard to the bond issue.

Sec. 3. Section 3, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 and RCW 39.44.230 are each amended to read as follows:

The department of community development may adopt rules and regulations pursuant to the administrative procedure act to require (1) the submission of bond issuance information by underwriters and bond counsel to the department of community development in a timely manner and (2) the submission of additional information on bond issues by state and local governments, including summaries of outstanding bond issues.

Sec. 4. Section 4, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 and RCW 39.44.240 are each amended to read as follows:

Failure to file the information required by RCW 39.44.210 ~~((through))~~ and 39.44.230 shall not affect the validity of the bonds that are issued.

Sec. 5. Section 6, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 and RCW 43.63A.155 are each amended to read as follows:

The department of community development shall retain the bond information it receives under RCW 39.44.210 ~~((through))~~ and 39.44.230 and shall publish summaries of local government bond issues at least once a year.

The department of community development shall adopt rules under chapter ~~((34.04))~~ 34.05 RCW to implement RCW 39.44.210 ~~((through))~~ and 39.44.230.

NEW SECTION. Sec. 6. Section 2, chapter 130, Laws of 1985 and RCW 39.44.220 are each repealed.

Passed the House April 17, 1989.

Passed the Senate April 11, 1989.

Approved by the Governor May 3, 1989.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 3, 1989.

CHAPTER 226

[House Bill No. 1241]

EXAMINING BOARD OF PSYCHOLOGISTS—STAGGERED TERMS FOR MEMBERS

AN ACT Relating to staggering the terms of the examining board of psychology; and amending RCW 18.83.035.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Washington:

Sec. 1. Section 76, chapter 279, Laws of 1984 as amended by section 2, chapter 27, Laws of 1986 and RCW 18.83.035 are each amended to read as follows:

There is created the examining board of psychology which shall examine the qualifications of applicants for licensing. The board shall consist of seven psychologists and two public members, all appointed by the governor. The public members shall not be and have never been psychologists or in training to be psychologists; they may not have any household member who is a psychologist or in training to be a psychologist; they may not participate or ever have participated in a commercial or professional field related to psychology, nor have a household member who has so participated; and they may not have had within two years before appointment a substantial financial interest in a person regulated by the board. Each psychologist member of the board shall be a citizen of the United States who has actively practiced psychology in the state of Washington for at least three years immediately preceding appointment and who is licensed under this chapter. ~~((Each member of the board shall serve for a term of five years.))~~ Board members shall be appointed for a term of five years, except that the terms of the existing appointees shall be adjusted by the governor so that no more than two members' terms expire each year with all subsequent appointments for a five-year term. Upon the death, resignation, or removal of a member, the governor shall appoint a successor to serve for the unexpired term. The board shall elect one of its members to serve as chairperson.

Passed the House March 2, 1989.

Passed the Senate April 14, 1989.

Approved by the Governor May 3, 1989.

Filed in Office of Secretary of State May 3, 1989.